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Praj at Glance

UOM 11-12 10-11 09-10 08-09 07-08 06-07 05-06 04-05 03-04

SALES ` Mn 8804.441 5529.310 6022.840 7718.813 7016.267 6074.744 2674.985 2352.573 1065.187

OTHER INCOME ` Mn 432.295 247.739 424.517 241.797 386.827 89.328 25.326 30.658 21.388

TOTAL INCOME ` Mn 9236.736 5819.565 6447.357 7960.610 7403.094 6164.072 2700.311 2383.231 1086.575

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 

NET OF DEPRECIATION

` Mn 7975.777 5066.273 5111.594 6270.875 5603.961 5028.815 2349.938 2084.557 963.281

DEPRECIATION ` Mn 141.730 111.356 105.110 81.713 55.349 31.608 26.502 19.550 15.742

EBIDTA ` Mn 830.112 463.096 914.546 1451.808 1412.599 1048.446 330.356 269.809 109.582

PBT ` Mn 1119.229 599.420 1230.653 1608.022 1743.784 1103.649 323.871 279.124 107.553

PAT ` Mn 658.245 534.725 1138.847 1297.479 1535.437 865.293 244.125 217.577 81.381

NET BLOCK OF FIXED 

ASSETS + CWIP

` Mn 1829.211 1595.950 1441.252 1471.597 1059.683 454.528 279.022 210.783 178.135

SHARE CAPITAL ` Mn 359.096 369.557 369.477 366.862 366.324 167.800 162.225 81.113 81.113

RESERVES AND 

SURPLUS

` Mn 5148.677 5219.931 4953.857 4067.745 3142.041 1405.061 387.292 340.813 222.845

NET WORTH ` Mn 5507.773 5589.488 5323.334 4434.607 3508.395 1572.861 549.517 421.926 303.958

EPS BASIC `  3.58  2.89  6.18  7.08  8.55  5.19  3.01  2.68  1.00 

RATIOS

EBIDTA TO SALES % 9% 8% 15% 19% 20% 17% 12% 11% 10%

PBT TO SALES % 13% 11% 20% 21% 25% 18% 12% 12% 10%

PAT TO SALES % 7% 10% 19% 17% 22% 14% 9% 9% 8%

RONW % 12% 10% 23% 33% 60% 82% 50% 60% 29%

ROCE % 20% 11% 24% 39% 67% 101% 63% 68% 29%

NO. OF SHARES Nos. 179,548,092 184,778,723 184,738,492 183,431,082 183,161,810  83,900,066 81,112,520  8,111,252  8,111,252 

DIVIDEND % 81% 63% 72% 90% 99% 135% 63% 108% 45%

BOOK VALUE PER 

SHARE

`  30.68  30.25  28.82  24.18  19.15  9.43  6.77  5.20  3.75 

CASH EPS `  4.46  3.50  6.73  7.52  8.69  5.38  3.34  2.92  1.20 
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Chairman’s Statement

Resilient Organization

Enduring,Consolidating,Growing,Sustaining

the topline and performance has been in line with our expectations, the margins though improving, 
need further attention. We will be taking this up during the coming year. Your Company has shown 
great resilience in the face of a global slowdown . In fact, resilience is ingrained in your Company’s 
fabric which allows it to endure tough times and bounce back, consolidate even against challenges, 
grow in the face of adversity and sustain the future. Just like the  of nature.

Your Company is an amalgam of various experiences and expertise. On one side, it is an engineering 
and projects Company given the fact that we undertake a large number of projects in which our 
process engineering plays a critical role. On another, we are a biotech Company, as the process 
solutions we offer encompass biotech platform, which are honed at Praj Matrix, our R & D Center.

Each area of expertise offers opportunities that will enhance our growth prospects. We will examine 
and build on each skill set for our future growth.

On the process engineering side your Company did undertake two new business lines over the past 
two years. Critical Process Equipment and Water & Wastewater Treatment Systems. The challenge 
now is to quickly integrate and scale up in the shortest time span. The best way is to consolidate and 
grow simultaneously. In line with this thought we have already resourced both the business lines 
adequately.

Our acquisition of Neela Systems with its niche business model of serving high purity water segment 
is proof of the Company putting its money where it can realize value.

To deliver on all aspects of the growth potential, your Company is working on a strategic growth plan. 
As we complete this plan, we will be happy to share the same with all.

We are also evaluating play in the biochemicals sector which is an outcome of our R & D focus. Praj 
Matrix has been working on various processes and biotech agenda which includes biochemicals, 
health & wellness and nutraceuticals. We are now in the process of developing business models 

 strategy. The 
biochemicals market itself is a trillion dollar opportunity. It is expected to be the next frontier of 
technology play.

consent to move ahead with a plan to set up a commercial scale demo plant which will be a technological 
feat in itself. This is expected to put your Company on the global map of advanced biofuels.

The Company has endured tough times over the last two years. We are now back on the growth path. 
It is time to make the future sustainable.

Pramod Chaudhari
Executive Chairman Pune, May 2012
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CEO’s Statement

Growth Dimensions

The world around us is changing rapidly and the challenges are mounting. Global Financial Crisis, 

challenges to organizations worldwide.  In this environment, Companies which are nimble, balanced 
and growth oriented  would stay ahead of the competition and thrive. 

Good news is your Company is back on the growth track. Growth has many dimensions – one of which 

of them : – We achieved highest ever tonnage in manufacturing. We undertook three large ethanol 
projects on turnkey basis in international markets. We successfully commissioned the Waste Water 

Process Equipment’s business has created strong customer relationships with global companies and 
is poised for exponential growth. Our Brewery plants business was accredited global supplier’s status 
by a leading brewer.  

We took steps in that direction – Acquisition of Neela Systems – Niche High Pure Water Company, 
was one such step. Your company has created many such examples during the year, which make us 

ahead, the work is quite cut out for us.  

space. We created the Center for Innovation and Applied Technology which is engaged in creating 
robust processes which will  provide customers value added propositions and help us increase repeat 
business. 

We see a lot of synergies in the integration of Neela Systems.It is our endeavor to make this transition 
as smooth as possible, while gaining from the synergies.

1 and 
Critical Process Eqipments business and consolidating our Brewery Plants business. We are making 
major commitments to drive operational excellence.

The Second Generation Bio Fuels program would get top priority for actualizing the Commercial Size 
Demo Plant. We will leave no stones unturned.

Dimension of Growth’. We are currently working on a medium term strategy plan which would provide 
the Praj team with insights and direction in its growth trajectory. Our aim is to balance our portfolio 
and accelerate growth.  

We are in to a challenging year but as you may agree strong organizations thrive under adversities.

Gajanan Nabar        
CEO & Managing Director  Pune, May 2012

1 Water & Wastewater Treatment Plants
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Directors’ Report

To The Members of Praj Industries Limited,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 26th Annual Report and the Audited Statements of Accounts 

for the year ended 31st March, 2012.

Financial Results

 

` 9237 Mn (previous year `

increased by 87% to ̀ 1119 Mn (previous year ̀  599 Mn). Highlights of performance are indicated below:

(` in Mn)

2011-12

Turnover 8805 5529

Other Income 432 248

Total Income 9237 5777

Total Expenses 8118 5178

PBT 1119 599

PAT 658 535

3462 3252

4120 3787

Appropriations

 Interim -

 Final (Proposed) 287 233

47 38

66 54

3720 3462

Dividend

The Board of Directors of your Company have recommended a dividend of ` 1.62 per equity share 

(81%) of face value of `

payable subject to shareholders’ approval at the ensuing AGM. The dividend payout will be ` 334 Mn 

including dividend distribution tax.

Credit Rating

“P1+”

that the degree of safety regarding timely payment of instruments is very strong.

‘AA/Stable’.

high safety

Buy-back of Equity Shares

Your Company, pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors under Section 77A of the Companies 

`

not exceeding `

capital and free reserves as on 31st March, 2011.

for a total consideration of ` 558.638 Mn (exclusive of Brokerage, STT and other charges) utilising 
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the Securities Premium account. All the equity shares bought back have been extinguished. Post  

Buy-back, the paid-up equity shares of your Company stand at 177,465,079 nos.

Strategic Acquisition

During the year under review:

Your Company has acquired majority stake (50.20%) in Neela Systems Ltd “ Neela” on 6th January, 

2012 for a consideration of ` 646 Mn. Neela is a Mumbai based Company having business interests 

in Water Treatment and Modular Process Systems, focused on Biotech, Pharma, Life Sciences and 

Cosmetics Industries. Future arrangements provide for further increase in stake by Praj. Neela is now 

a subsidiary of your Company.

Subsidiaries

Your Company has formed a wholly owned subsidiary by name Praj Industries (Africa) Pty. Ltd., 

in South Africa on 19th July, 2011. Praj Industries (Africa) Pty. Ltd., also formed two wholly owned 

subsidiaries by name Praj Industries (Tanzania) Ltd., Tanzania and Praj Industries (Sierra Leone) Ltd., 

Sierra Leone on 20th September 2011 and 28th October 2011, respectively.

Apart from the above, Pacecon Engineering Projects Ltd., BioCnergy Europa B. V., Netherlands, Praj 

Jaragua Bioenergia S.A., Brazil, Praj Americas Inc., Texas, Houston, U.S.A and Praj Far East Co. Ltd., 

Thailand continue to be the subsidiaries of your Company and are operating in their respective areas.

The Central Government has granted exemption under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956, 

from attaching to the Balance sheet of the Company, the Accounts and the other documents of its 

Subsidiary Companies. In view of this, Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, which 

include the results of the said Subsidiary Companies, are included in this Annual Report. Further, a 

statement containing the particulars prescribed under the terms of the said exemption for each of the 

Company’s subsidiaries is also enclosed. Copies of Annual Accounts and related detailed information 

of all the subsidiaries can also be sought by any investor of the Company or its Subsidiaries on making 

The Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies are also available for inspection at the Company’s 

Proceedings under Section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961

In the month of April 2012, proceedings were initiated by the Income Tax Department under Section 

132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Though the Company is yet to receive a demand notice from the 

Income Tax Department, it is in the process of gathering the information / documents and tax advice. 

Due to this, the Company is not in a position to reliably estimate the liability (if any) arising out of these 

proceedings. The management, on the basis of best estimate, has made a prudential provision of 

`

In the subsequent quarters, when more clarity is achieved, the difference, if any, between the above 

case may be.

Corporate Governance

Analysis Report (Annexure 1), Sustainability Report (Annexure 2) and Report on Corporate Governance 

Directors

Mr. Berjis Desai and Mr. Rajiv Maliwal, Directors, retire by rotation from the Board and being eligible, 

offer themselves for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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Auditors

a) Internal Auditors

 The Internal Auditors, M/s. Khare Deshmukh & Co., Chartered Accountants, Pune, have 
conducted internal audits periodically and submitted their reports to Audit Committee. Their 
reports have been reviewed by the Statutory Auditors and the Audit Committee.

b) Statutory Auditors

 The Statutory Auditors, M/s. B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (Registration 

be within the prescribed limits under Section 224 (1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

c) Cost Audit

 Pursuant to the directives of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, your Company has appointed  
Mr. Dhananjay V. Joshi & Associates, Cost Accountants as Cost Auditors of the Company under 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the requirements of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of 
Directors states that:

 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

 The accounting policies selected have been applied consistently and judgements and estimates 
made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

 The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Employee Stock Option Plan

The information to be disclosed as per SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 is annexed to this Report (Annexure 4).

Additional Statutory Information

Particulars of Employees:

The statement of particulars required pursuant to Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read 
with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Amendment Rules, 2011, forms a part of this report. 
However, as permitted by the Companies Act, 1956, the Report and Accounts are being sent to 
Members and other entitled persons excluding the above statement. Those interested in obtaining 

of the Annual General Meeting.

“Group” for SEBI Takeover Regulations:

For the purpose of Regulation 2 (1) (t) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 are – Mr. Pramod Chaudhari, 

Turtle Communication and Fusiontech Ventures Private Limited.
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Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption, Adaptation, Innovation:

Your Company values innovation and invests considerable resources in promoting this value. The 

Company is constantly enhancing its offerings in the market as it recognizes that this is the most 

effective way to grow sustainably. Each year, it incorporates incremental innovation in order to 

improve competitiveness of its offerings. The Company focuses on energy, water and product yields 

for its existing business lines. While Praj Matrix carries out discovery based Research & Development, 

application related innovation is carried out by the Center of Innovation & Applied Technology as well 

BioProcessing Platform’, after ceasing of the Joint Development Program. 

Your Company has;

 Developed Xylose (Pentose sugar) fermentation strain with scale up of the microbe to pilot plant 

with minimum media and very low retention time. When incorporated into Praj’s LC to Ethanol 

reduces steam consumption.

 Developed a distillation system called ECOSMART wherein capacity expansion can be 

 Commissioned a Sequential Batch Reactor system for wastewater treatment in the agrichemicals 

sector. This system is offered entirely through internal developmental efforts. The system 

considerably reduces energy for treatment of wastewater 

Other than this, your Company has introduced many new schemes and processes for lowering energy, 

water consumption and generation of wastewater. The initiatives taken by your Company to enhance 

its commitment to Sustainable Practices are given in the Sustainability Report, enclosed separately.

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

(` in Mn)

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Earnings 3634 1838

Outgo 1554  850 

Net Foreign Exchange Earnings 2080 988

Your Company has retained its status as a net forex earner.

Acknowledgements

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation towards all associates including Customers, 

Collaborators, Government Agencies, Financial Institutions, Bankers, Suppliers, Shareholders, 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Pune Pramod Chaudhari

Date: 29th May, 2012 Executive Chairman
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Annexure - 1

Management Discussion & Analysis

Overview

Financial Review

`  
`

`  
` ` `

` ` `

Industry structure

Alcohol/ethanol industry

Brewery/beer industry
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Your Company has been investing into serving the changing expectations of beer producers. 

Recently, your Company commissioned the largest brewery in India with the brew length of 300 
hectoliter and total capacity of one million hectoliter per year. 

Your Company is considered to be an integrated brewery plant supplier and is also working towards 
forging partnerships in this space to bring the best of the brewery experience to its customers in India 
and other emerging markets.

Water and wastewater treatment

Water scarcity, environmental concerns and challenges in manufacturing processes in various 
industries and pressure on municipal services are the key drivers for this business. Over a period of 
time, with increasing industrial activities across certain regions, the need for reduction, recycle and 
reuse of treated wastewater and zero liquid discharge will clearly enhance technology play in the 
water space.

Your Company introduced this business line a year ago and has already demonstrated its capabilities 
by offering critical technologies and systems for wastewater treatment to a number of industries 

successfully commissioned. 

beyond India wherein it can offer value added services.

in niche segments like pharmaceuticals, food and beverages, biotech and cosmetics.

Critical Process Equipment

With more and more sourcing of process equipment from India, we are seeing an uptick in the demand 

fertilizers and several other industries.

moved up the value chain to offer bundled solutions which go beyond mere fabrication. It now serves 
customers in South East Asia and Middle East with possible future expansion into South and North 
America.

thickness vessels for industries with such requirement. This has augmented your Company’s position 
as a competitive supplier in the international market.

Biotech Products

This business was introduced for its potential to deliver recurring revenue. Currently, the Company 

industry. 

A GMP based manufacturing facility has been commissioned for this purpose. Located near Pune, 
this facility will look to scale up with other biotech products that will expand the portfolio and can serve 

including amino acids and probiotics as an area of interest and is in the process of charting out a 
marketing plan. 

Apart from this, your Company’s R & D Center, Praj Matrix , is also working on other biotech products 
which can either be manufactured and marketed by your Company or licensed for production to the 
industry. The biotech production unit will be aligned for these product lines as well.

Human Resources

Talent Acquisition and Management is a top priority. In line with its long term plans, the Company has 
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The Company has also initiated talent acquisition from various top level management institutes as well 
as engineering institutes. Diversity management and inclusion of women and differently abled people 
in the workforce is also being given due attention.

Organization development in terms of creating a vibrant organization which will take the Company 
from the current level of performance to the next level is also being developed in line with the strategic 
requirements.

Organizational Initiatives

and value enhancement for customers. It is expected to make your Company more competitive. 
Your Company has set up two Centers of Excellence – one for Innovation & Applied Technology and 
another for Engineering – in line with the objectives of the Company to enhance its competitive edge.

IT and Infrastructure

The company is making continuous investments in Business Process Automation and Information 
Technology. Plans are underway to implement and leverage current technology services this year 
to enhance existing infrastructure capacity, data security, data centralization & business process 

1) Server Virtualization: Consolidates and reduces server footprint and help IT team do more with 
same team.

2) Internally developed Business Process automation on Intranet, private cloud: Improves 

Your Company will increasingly use virtual environment for servers and desktops which will have 

this will also assist with better decision support systems.

The manufacturing operations of your Company are recognized for its quality delivery alongwith safety 
compliance. In recognition, 

Engineering and Metallurgical Products to the Kandla manufacturing unit. 

recognition of your Company’s contributions;

member of the association for another three years term. Praj Matrix actively participates in the 
forum. 

Biotechnology (WCIB) recently. The WCIB is established to share experts’ opinions to promote 
appropriate policies, research and business directions on industrial biotechnology. World 
Economic Forum (WEF, Geneva, Switzerland) is a founding member of this organization.
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Committee. 

Company in recognition of the outstanding contribution to the BioIndustrial Sector.

Technologies. 

AA/Stable rating; Letter of Credit and Bank Guarantee facility has been assigned CRISIL A1+ 
rating and Proposed Long Term Bank Facility is assigned AA/Stable rating. 

Future outlook

Your Company’s growth plans are based on leveraging its process engineering experience and 
venturing into other synergistic businesses. The focus in the near term will be on progressing the 

The Company has also embarked upon developing a blue print for medium term strategic plan which 
will not only focus on how to scale up the current businesses but also examine adjacent spaces for 

Risks and concerns

Economic and Political situation in key markets of your Company is seen as an essential risk element. 
Your Company has no current exposure to any high risk markets.

a forex risk management system.

The Company is also exposed to raw material risk which shows considerable volatility. A suitable 
purchase and stocking policy is followed.

of a contract which may relate to commercial terms. The Company has a robust policy in place to 
counter these risks to the extent possible.

The Company is also exposed to risks on account of the sector it serves. Biofuels/Distillery and 
Brewery businesses are governed by the legislations of different geographies served by the Company. 
The Company has adequate geographical spread.

Internal control systems

The Company has instituted adequate internal control procedure(s) commensurate with the nature 
of its business and the size of its operations for the smooth conduct of its business. Internal audit is 
conducted continually, at all locations and covers the key areas of operations. It is an independent, 
objective and assurance function, responsible for evaluating and improving the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes. The Internal Auditors do not have any adverse 
comments on the internal control systems of the Company.

Forward looking statements
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Annexure - 2

Sustainability Report

Actions built on Values

The values espoused by your Company include respect for environment and society. We recognize 

that education, innovation and entrepreneurship will help promote and nurture these values. These 

values and the resultant actions determine and guide the sustainability agenda and the CSR activities 

of your Company.

Praj Foundation together with Praj Industries work to address sustainability related actions. Some of 

the agenda points are part of the Company’s business initiatives. These include:

and safe operations. The Company conducts various activities for creation and promotion of 

safety culture amongst all its employees and associates.

Over the years, it has made deliberate attempts to maintain gender balance. Women form 10% of 

workforce through induction of people from every corner of the country. We plan to do so globally 

reduced water consumption by 12% in 6 months through recycle and reuse of wastewater.

norms, at various locations.

wherein employees are actively encouraged to volunteer in various social responsibility programs 

this initiative.

Other social initiatives include:

Environment

Praj Foundation has undertaken environment awareness program through Green Concepts at 

Scholarships and 9 Green Awards in appreciation of the green practices undertaken by the students.

In another effort, Praj Foundation has instilled ecological awareness amongst school going children at 

nurture trees within school premises and at their homes.

Praj Foundation partnered city based INORA to promote city farming through decentralised 

biodegradable waste management. So far, 300 tons of solid waste has been converted into compost 

every month. The program has also spawned ‘social entrepreneurs’, who through their association 

with the program, are also drawing meaningful livelihood.

promoting organic farming concept. Under this program, 14 farmers have shifted from traditional to 

sustainable farming practices. This has helped them bring down their cultivation cost while maintaining 

the yields.

Praj Foundation is working with BAIF and OIKOS towards restoration of ‘Sacred Groves’. This 

effort promotes biodiversity conservation in the hot spots of the western ghats. Two Sacred Groves 

conservation efforts have been completed. Seeds collected from native trees are being used for 

raising seedlings to be used for plantation.
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Praj Foundation has undertaken water resources development initiatives at Mandede village, near 

Pune wherein community wells were deepened. This has resulted in enough water even during 

summers.

Rainwater harvesting system has been installed at a students’ welfare association hostel in Pune 

city with support from Praj Foundation. This follows the grant for solar water heating system installed 

Health

covering more than 250 women in 3 adjacent villages. Activities like health awareness sessions, 

regular blood check up camps and developing kitchen gardens for nutritional security is undertaken. 

The results of these activities have been remarkable with 30% women attaining and maintaining high 

haemoglobin count.

Education

Praj Foundation has supported the establishment of food processing and testing facility at Vigyan 

Ashram, Pabal. This facility undertakes training of rural students and SH groups in learning processing 

Praj is lead mentor to ITI Velhe (under the Government of India’s PPP scheme) with other industry 

partners are assisting with design of new programs, laboratory and other facilities in order to enhance 

the quality of training thereby improving employability of rural youth.

Intrapreneurship

intrapreneurs from corporate and social sector. We have also brought out a compilation featuring 

past awardees in partnership with SIBM. Your Company also awards its own employees in order to 

promote intranpreneurship within the Company. For details, please see www.mahaintrapreneur.com

Your Company is working around the theme of environment, health, education and services to 

also undertakes impact assessment of its programs in order to understand the level of intervention 

required. Your Company is totally committed to inclusive growth and sustainability.
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Annexure - 3

Report on Corporate Governance

1. Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

 Corporate Governance sets forth guidelines for managing and sustaining a transparent, 

extensive. It also provides guidelines on accountability of various positions within the 
organisation. These values govern not only the Board of Directors, but also the management 
and the employees of the Company. This Governance protects and balances the interests of all 
stakeholders thereby enhancing shareholder value.

2. Board of Directors

 a) Composition of the Board

  The strength of the Board was nine Directors as on 31st March, 2012, comprising of two 

are Independent Directors.

 b) Number of Board Meetings

  Six Board Meetings were held during the year ended 31st March, 2012. The dates are – 
28th April, 24th May, 22nd July, 13th October, 3rd December in the calendar year 2011 and 
20th January in the calendar year 2012.

 c) Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and number 
of other Directorships and Chairmanships / Memberships of Committees of each Director:

Name of Director Nature of 

Directorship

Board Meetings 

attended 

during the year

Whether 

attended 

last AGM

No. of other

Directorships2

No. of Committee 

Memberships3

Chairman Member

Mr. Pramod Chaudhari PD, ED 6 Yes 3 1 Nil

Mr. Gajanan Nabar ED 5 Yes 1 Nil 1

Mr. Berjis Desai ID, NED 6 Yes 10 2 8

Mr. Kishor Chaukar ID, NED 4 Yes 15 1 6

Ms. Parimal Chaudhari1 PD, NED 5 Yes Nil Nil 1

Mr. Prakash Kulkarni ID, NED 5 Yes 1 Nil 1

Mr. Rajiv Maliwal ID, NED 5 Yes 3 Nil Nil

Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer ID, NED 5 Yes 5 4 2

Mr. Utpal Sheth NED 4 Yes 8 Nil Nil

Executive Director}

 1 Ms. Parimal Chaudhari is wife of the Executive Chairman, Mr. Pramod Chaudhari. None of 
the other directors is related to any other director.

 2 Excludes private, foreign & Section 25 Companies.

 3 Memberships / Chairmanships of only Audit Committee and Investors’ Grievance Committee 
have been considered for this purpose.

 All relevant information suggested under the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is furnished to 
the Board from time to time.

Code of conduct:

The Board has introduced a Code of Conduct for Directors and members of Senior Management. The 
Code is posted on Company’s website www.praj.net

declaration to that effect signed by Mr. Gajanan Nabar, CEO & MD forms part of this Report.



Praj   Annual Report 2011-1216

Sustaining

GrowingResilience
Sustaining, Growing

Sustaining Enduring

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Resilience,
Consolidating

Sustaining
Growing

SustainingResilience
nce

Resilience
Su

Gro
Resilience

Sustaining Enduring, Co

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience
Sustaining

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Consolidating

GrowingGrowing

SustainingResilience
Resilie

Resilien

Resilience
Enduring

Consolidating

3. Committees of the Directors:

 a) Audit Committee

  Terms of reference: The terms of reference of Audit Committee include overseeing the 

the Board for approval; reviewing with the management, the performance of Statutory and 

under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges.

  Composition: As on 31st March, 2012, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises 

Committee), Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer and Mr. Prakash Kulkarni. The composition of 
the Audit Committee meets the requirements of Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 
and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

  Meetings: 
21st July, 12th October, in the calendar year 2011 and 19th January in the calendar year 
2012.

  Attendance of each Member at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Meetings attended

Mr. Berjis Desai 5 4

Mr. Prakash Kulkarni 5 5

Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer 5 4

  In addition to the members of Audit Committee, Executives of Accounts Department, 
Secretarial Department and Representatives of the Statutory and Internal Auditors attend 
the Audit Committee Meetings. Senior functional executives are also invited as and when 
required, to provide necessary inputs to the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as 
the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

 b) Remuneration Committee:

  Terms of reference: The Remuneration Committee has been constituted to recommend / 
review the remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company.

  Composition: As on 31st March, 2012, the Remuneration Committee of the Company 

of the Committee), Mr. Rajiv Maliwal, Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer and Mr. Utpal Sheth.

  Meetings: This Committee has met two times during the year ended 31st March, 2012. The 
dates are 24th May, 2011 and 22nd July 2011.

  Attendance of each Member at the Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Meetings attended

Mr. Berjis Desai 2 2

Mr. Rajiv Maliwal 2 2

Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer 2 2

Mr. Utpal Sheth 2 2

 Remuneration Policy:

 The Remuneration Policy of the Company takes into account the individual performance and 

government policy in this regard.

 i) Remuneration of Executive Directors:

  The aggregate value of Salary & Perquisites including commission for the year ended  
31st March, 2012 to the Executive Directors is as follows:
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  Mr. Pramod Chaudhari, Executive Chairman ` 57.726 Mn (Salary ` 15.3 Mn, Perquisites  
` 19.926 Mn, Commission ` 22.5 Mn, besides this, he is also entitiled to Provident Fund, 
Superannuation, Gratuity and encashment of leave, as per the rules of the Company.),  
Mr. Gajanan Nabar, CEO & MD ` 22.544 Mn (Salary ` 7.2 Mn, Perquisites ` 12.844 Mn and 
commission ` 2.5 Mn). 

  Under ESOP 2005 Grant IV 1,250,000 Options have been granted to Mr. Gajanan Nabar at 
Fair Market Value and the same are exercisable by him according to the terms of the Scheme.

date of appointment. As per agreement, Severance Fee is restricted to 36 months’ salary.

appointment. As per agreement, Severance Fee is restricted to 6 months’ salary.

 ii) Compensation to Non-Executive Directors:

  As a policy, the Company does not pay any sitting fees to Directors for attendance of the 
Meetings. The shareholders of the Company had, in the 23rd Annual General Meeting held 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Board of Directors is 
authorised, within this limit, to decide the quantum and the recipients for such payment.

` 6.5 Mn. The details are as 
follows:

  Mr. Berjis Desai ` 1.08 Mn, Mr. Kishor Chaukar ` 0.63 Mn, Ms. Parimal Chaudhari ` 0.99 Mn, 
Mr. Prakash Kulkarni ` 1.28 Mn, Mr. Rajiv Maliwal ` 0.45 Mn, Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer  
` 1.62 Mn and Mr. Utpal Sheth ` 0.45 Mn.

  Shares held and Options granted to Non-Executive Directors as on 31/03/2012:

Name of Director Number 

of Equity 

Shares

held

Stock 

Options

outstanding 

Grant Price 

per option

(`)

Last 

date for 

conversion 

of options 

Mr. Berjis Desai  1,481,450 Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Kishor Chaukar Nil Nil N. A. N. A.

Ms. Parimal Chaudhari 11,700,000 Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Prakash Kulkarni  5,000 Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Rajiv Maliwal  20,000 Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer  180,000 Nil N. A. N. A.

Mr. Utpal Sheth  120,100 Nil N. A. N. A.

 c) Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee:

  Composition: As on 31st March, 2012, the Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance 
Committee of the Board comprises of two Directors namely Ms. Parimal Chaudhari and Mr. 
Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer (Chairman of the Committee).

  Meetings: This Committee has met three times during the year ended 31st March, 2012. 
The dates are – 24th May, 22nd July, 13th October, in the calendar year 2011.

  Attendance of each Member at the Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee 
meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Meetings attended

Ms. Parimal Chaudhari 3 3

Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer 3 3
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  During the year the Company has received 6 complaints which were attended to. No 
investors’ complaint is pending as on 31st March, 2012.

Agreements with the Stock Exchanges.

 d) Compensation & Share Allotment Committee:

  Composition: As on 31st March, 2012, the Compensation & Share Allotment Committee 
 

Mr. Pramod Chaudhari, Mr. Prakash Kulkarni and Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer (Chairman 
of the Committee).

  Meetings: This Committee has met two times during the year ended 31st March, 2012. The 
dates are 24thMay, 2011 and 13th October, 2011.

  Attendance of each Member at the Compensation and Share Allotment Committee 
meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Meetings attended

Mr. Berjis Desai 2 2

Mr. Gajanan Nabar1 2 Nil

Mr. Pramod Chaudhari 2 2

Mr. Prakash Kulkarni1 2 Nil

Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer 2 2

  1 Members w.e.f. 13th October, 2011.

 e) Share Buy-back Committee:

  Composition: 
comprises of three Directors namely Mr. Gajanan Nabar (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. 
Pramod Chaudhari and Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer.

  Meetings: This Committee has met two times during the year ended 31st March, 2012. The 
dates are 3rd December, 2011 and 20th January, 2012.

  Attendance of each Member at the Share Buy-back Committee meetings held during 
the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings Meetings attended

Mr. Gajanan Nabar 2 1

Mr. Pramod Chaudhari 2 2

Mr. Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer 2 2

 General Body Meetings:

 Details of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) are given in table below:

Year Venue Date & Time Special Resolutions passed 

“PRAJ HOUSE”, 

Bavdhan, 

Pune 411 021

9th July, 2009 

10.30 a.m.

a) Alteration of Articles of Association

Directors of the Company at enhanced 

rate.

“PRAJ HOUSE”, 

Bavdhan, 

Pune 411 021

23rd July, 2010 

10.00 a.m.

 Nil

“PRAJ HOUSE”, 

Bavdhan, 

Pune 411 021

22nd July, 2011  

10.00 a.m.

a) Issue of shares under Employee Stock Option 

Plan 2011 to employees of the Company.

b) Issue of shares under Employee Stock Option 

Plan 2011 to employees of the subsidiaries of 

the Company.
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4. Disclosures:

 a. Related Party Transactions:

related party transactions.

 b. Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures:

by the Stock Exchanges, or any other statutory authority on any matter relating to the 
Capital Market during the last three years.

 c. Listing Agreement Compliance:

  The Company complies with all the requirements of the Listing Agreement including the 
mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Agreement.

 d. Whistle Blower Policy:

  The Company has a mechanism for employees to report their concerns about unethical 

employees using this mechanism.

5. Disclosure regarding appointment / re-appointment of Directors:

 Mr. Berjis Desai

 Date of birth : 02/08/1956

 Date of appointment : 27/08/1993

 His expertise lies in laws relating to mergers and acquisitions, securities, international commercial 

 Directorships held in other public companies (excluding foreign companies and Section 25 
Companies):

 Currently, Mr. Berjis Desai is on the Board of following Companies:

 Sterlite Industries (India) Ltd., The Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd., Edelweiss Financial 
Services Ltd., Adani Power Ltd., Deepak Nitrite Ltd., Himatsingka Seide Ltd., DCW Ltd., NOCIL 
Ltd., Greatship (India) Ltd., Emcure Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

 Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of public companies (includes only Audit Committee 
and Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee):

Sterlite Industries (India) Ltd. Member – Shareholders’ Grievance Committee

Member – Audit Committee

NOCIL Chairman – Investor Grievance Committee

Praj Industries Ltd. Chairman – Audit Committee

The Great Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd. Member – Audit Committee

Member – Shareholders’ Grievance Committee

Edelweiss Financial Services Ltd. Member – Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee

Member – Audit Committee

Greatship (India) Ltd. Member – Audit Committee

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Member – Audit Committee

 Shareholding in the Company:

 He holds 1,481,450 (0.81%) shares of the Company in his name as on 31st March, 2012.
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 Mr. Rajiv Maliwal

 Date of birth : 26/11/1960
 Date of appointment : 14/08/2009

 Nil

 Mr. Pramod Chaudhari

 Date of birth : 26/11/1949

6. Investor Services:

 a. Share Transfer Process

 b. Investor Help-desk
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address is given in the section on Shareholders’ Information.

 c. Dividends

and Registrar and Transfer Agent. Investor services like electronic information system for 
payment of dividend have been introduced for those investors whose email ids are available 
with the Company.

and CFO of the Company was placed at the Board Meeting of the Company held on 29th May, 
2012.

 All mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement have been complied with by 

 Non-Mandatory requirements:

maintained at the Company’s expenses for use by the Chairman.

 Retirement Guidelines:

of 70 years. However, the Board is at liberty to grant extensions.

 Shareholders’ Rights:

Mumbai and Business Standard all editions and are also displayed on the Company’s website 
and therefore, have not been separately circulated to the shareholders.

 Training of Board Members:

 The present Board of Directors is comprised of well experienced professionals and entrepreneurs.

 Mechanism for evaluating Non-Executive Board Members:

 Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy:

 The Company has a policy and mechanism for preventing sexual harassment of employees.

Secretary regarding Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement and the same is annexed.

9. Additional Information for Shareholders:

 Annual General Meeting:
 Date & Time : Friday, 20th July, 2012
 Venue : “PRAJ HOUSE”, Bavdhan, Pune 411 021
 Financial Year : 1st April to 31st March
 Financial Calendar

 For the year ended 31st March, 2012 quarterly results were announced on:

Results for the quarter ended June 2011 22nd July, 2011

Results for the quarter ended September 2011 13th October, 2011

Results for the quarter ended December 2011 20th January, 2012

29th May, 2012
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 For the year ended 31st March, 2013, the tentative announcement dates are:

Results for the quarter ending June 2012 Third week of July 2012

Results for the quarter ending September 2012 Third week of October 2012

Results for the quarter ending December 2012 Third week of January 2013

Third week of May 2013

 Date of Book Closure : 16th July, 2012 to 20th July, 2012 (both days inclusive)
 Dividend payment Date : On or after 1st August, 2012.
 Stock / Scrip Code / ISIN / CIN

National Stock Exchange Ltd. (NSE) PRAJIND

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) 522205

ISIN with NSDL & CDSL INE074A01025

L27101PN1985PLC038031

 Stock Market Data

Month BSE NSE

High (`) Low (`) High (`) Low (`)

 April 2011 85.20 71.80 85.25 71.80

 May 2011 81.10 67.50 81.90 67.15

 June 2011 77.00 68.00 78.00 68.10

 July 2011 95.45 72.40 94.70 72.55

 August 2011 85.70 64.30 85.50 64.20

 September 2011 78.65 62.10 78.80 67.80

 October 2011 85.75 68.40 85.85 67.95

 November 2011 86.65 66.70 86.75 66.00

 December 2011 84.50 67.90 87.00 67.75

 January 2012 92.70 74.30 92.40 73.90

 February 2012 92.45 76.10 92.45 77.50

 March 2012 82.70 74.25 82.50 74.15
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 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2012:

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Category No. of shares of  

` 2/- each

% of 

holding

No. of shares of  

` 2/- each

%  

of holding

Promoters Holding 47700000 26.22 46620000 25.23

Total (A) 47700000 26.22 46620000 25.23

Mutual Funds 5469661  3.01 8079153 4.37

Financial Institutions/Banks 7743026  4.25 8663184 4.69

Foreign Institutional Investors 32807679 18.03 21674293 11.73

Bodies Corporate 23430515 12.87 25017284 13.54

Indian Public 57199714 31.44 64154321 34.72

Clearing Members  1465514  0.81 642253 0.35

 4451835  2.45 8245685 4.46

Overseas Corporate Bodies  1622250  0.89 1622250 0.88

Trusts  60300  0.03 60300 0.03

Total (B) 134250494 73.78 138158723 74.77

Total (A) + (B) 181950494 100.00 184778723 100.00

 * Kindly refer to Note No. 42 of Standalone Financial Statement.

Bodies Corporate 

12.87%

Indian Public  

31.44%

Mutual Funds/ 

Banks/ Financial 

Institutions  

7.26%

FIIs/OCB 

18.92%

NRIs 

2.45%

Promoters Holding

26.22%

Others

0.84%

 Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2012:

Shareholding of 

nominal value

Shareholders Percentage Nominal Value of 

Equity Shares in `

Percentage

115294  98.33  45663416 12.55

 1050  0.89  7666914  2.11

 442  0.38  6632816  1.82

 127  0.11  3235944  0.89

 86  0.07  3091398  0.85

 44  0.04  2046018  0.56

 83  0.07  5959288  1.64

100001 and above  125  0.11 289605194 79.58

Total 117251 100.00 363900988 100.00

 * Kindly refer to Note No. 42 of Standalone Financial Statement.
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 Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity:

 As on 31st March, 2012, 99.76% of shareholding was held in dematerialised form with National 
Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). In terms 

in dematerialised form w.e.f. 15th March, 2000.

 Physical and Demat Shares:

As on 31/03/2012 %

105440529  57.95

 76076463  41.81

Physical Shares  433502  0.24

Total 181950494 100.00

 * Kindly refer to Note No. 42 of Standalone Financial Statement.

 Unclaimed Dividend:

1999, the dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of 

respect of any such claims.

Financial Year Type Date of 

Declaration

Due date of 

transfer to IEPF

2004-05 2nd Interim Dividend 04-05

2005-06 Interim Dividend 05-06

2006-07 Interim Dividend 06-07

2006-07 2nd Interim Dividend 06-07

2007-08 Interim Dividend 07-08

2008-09 Interim Dividend 08-09

2009-10 Interim Dividend 09-10

2010-11 Dividend 2010-11

due date; if not encashed earlier.

 Investor Services:

Ltd., Pune.

 In order to facilitate investor servicing, the Company has designated an e-mail id 
praj.net

 Address for correspondence:

and share related matters.
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 Shares held in Electronic Form:

 The members holding shares in electronic mode should address their correspondences to 

change of bank account mandate and nomination.

 Means of Communication:

 
published in widely circulating dailies such as Indian Express, Loksatta, Economic Times, 
Pune & Mumbai, and Business Standard all editions.

 
media, analysts etc. are displayed on the Company’s website www.praj.net
Releases are sent to the Stock Exchanges.

  Website: The Company’s website www.praj.net contains a separate dedicated section 
“Investor Lounge” where information for shareholders is available. The Annual Report of 
the Company is also available on the website in a downloadable form.

  Annual Report: Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Consolidated 
Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other important information 
is circulated to members and others entitled thereto. The Management Discussion Analysis 

  NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS): The NEAPS is a web based 
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Declaration for Compliance with Code of Conduct

To the members of PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Pursuant to Clause 49 I (D) (ii) of the Listing Agreement, I hereby declare that all Board members 

and senior management personnel are aware of the provisions of the Code of Conduct laid down by 

the Board and made effective from 28th January, 2006. All Board members and senior management 

For Praj Industries Limited

GAJANAN NABAR

CEO & MD

Place : Pune

Date : 29th May, 2012

 

Agreement by Praj Industries Limited

To the Members of PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

I have examined the compliance by PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges, for 

the year ended 31st March, 2012.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify 

that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 

49 of the Listing Agreement.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of 

the Company. My examination was limited to procedures adopted, and implementation thereof, by 

the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance under Clause 49. 

Company.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

Dr. K. R. Chandratre

Practising Company Secretary

FCS No. 1370

Place : Pune

Date : 29th May, 2012
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Annexure - 4

Disclosures pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (ESOS and ESPS) Guidelines, 1999

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars ESOP 2005 

Grant III – 9th 

July, 2009 

ESOP 2005 

Grant IV – 

Plan A – 16th 

Nov., 2010 

ESOP 2005 

Grant IV – 

Plan B – 16th 

Nov., 2010

1 Details of meeting Annual General Meeting held on 23rd July, 2005.

2 Options Granted (including impact of bonus) 3,029,626 1,250,000 700,000

3 Pricing Formula At fair market 

value 

At fair market 

value

At fair market 

value

4 Options vested 1,684,075 Nil Nil

5 Options exercised 4,100 Nil Nil

6 The total number of shares arising as a result of 

exercise of options

4,100 Nil Nil

7 Options lapsed / cancelled 896,926 Nil 21,000

8 Variation of terms of options Nil Nil Nil

9 Money realised by exercise of options during the year Nil Nil Nil

10 Total number of options in force 2,128,600 1,250,000 679,000

11 Employee-wise details of options granted to Senior 

Managerial Personnel:–

Gajanan Nabar

Balu Sarma

-

15,000

1,250,000

-

-

30,000

12 Any other employee who receives a grant in any one 

year of option amounting to 5% or more of option 

granted during that year:–

Gajanan Nabar - 1,250,000 -

13 

during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the 

issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and 

conversions) of the Company at the time of grant.

- - -

14. Proforma adjusted net income and earning per share:

Particulars `

Net income as reported (in Mn) 658.24

Add: Intrinsic Value Compensation Cost (in Mn) Nil

Less: Fair Value Compensation Cost (in Mn) 37.73

Adjusted Proforma Net Income (in Mn) 620.51

Basic Earning Per Share – 

 As Reported 3.58

 Adjusted Proforma 3.41

Diluted Earning Per Share – 

 As Reported 3.57

 Adjusted Proforma 3.41
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15. Assumptions used to estimate the Fair Value of Options using Black-Scholes option pricing model:

Particulars Date of Grants 

9th July, 2009 16th Nov., 2010  

Plan A

16th Nov., 2010  

Plan B

1) Risk-free interest rate 4.09% - 5.40% 7.35% - 7.79% 7.10%

2) Expected Life 2-3 years 2-3 years 1-3 years

3) Expected Volatility 83.45% 76.64% 80.77%

4) Expected Dividend Yield 0.93% 2.57% 2.57%

5) Price of the underlying share in 

market at the time of grants 

` 81.75 ` 72.70 ` 72.70

16. (i) Weighted-average exercise price of options granted:

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars 
`

1 Exercise price equals market price 78.21

2 Exercise price is greater than market price N.A.

3 Exercise price is less than market price N.A.

 (ii) Weighted-average fair value of options granted during the year:

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars `

1 Exercise price equals market price N.A.

2 Exercise price is greater than market price N.A.

3 Exercise price is less than market price N.A.
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Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Praj Industries Limited

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Praj Industries Limited (‘the Company’) as at  

on our audit.

the said Order.

 

and

B. K. Khare & Co.

Padmini Khare Kaicker
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report

our examination of the records of the inventory, the Company is maintaining proper records 

account.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an 

opinion that the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 301 of the 

entered.

dues including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state 
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in respect of provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state 

Name of the 

statute

Nature of dues Rupees in 

Million

Period to which the 

amount relates

Forum where 

dispute is pending

Central Sales 

statutory declaration 

forms

1.19

Commissioner 

transactions relating to investment in securities, the Company has maintained proper records of 

(xvi) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties or companies covered 

our audit.

B. K. Khare & Co.

Padmini Khare Kaicker
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2012

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

 Notes 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’  Funds  

Share Capital 3 359.096 369.557

Reserves and Surplus 4 5148.677 5219.931

Non-current liabilities

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 131.903 143.167

Long Term Provisions 6 55.202 52.860

Current liabilities

Trade Payables 7 1397.677 1282.650

Other Current Liabilities 7 2178.675 1655.417

Short  Term Provisions 8 1577.709 962.858

TOTAL 10848.939 9686.440

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets 9 1618.935 1363.810

Intangible Assets 9 27.111 55.053

Capital Work-in-Progress 98.086 139.054

Non-Current Investments 10 899.341 252.319

Long Term Loans and Advances 11 116.268 67.169

Other Non-Current Assets 12 100.020 100.015

Current Assets

Current Investments 13 1350.000 2388.100

Inventories 14 740.835 628.542

Contracts in Progress 26 689.020 253.498

Trade Receivables 15 2576.110 1987.232

Cash and Bank Balances 16 1171.762 1275.185

Short Term Loans and advances 17 1461.451 1176.463

TOTAL 10848.939 9686.440

2

As per our report of even date.

For B. K. Khare & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Praj Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Padmini Khare Kaicker Pramod Chaudhari Gajanan Nabar
Partner Executive Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership No. 044784

Dattatraya Nimbolkar Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer
Place: Pune VP - Finance & Accounts Director
Date: 29th May, 2012 and Company Secretary
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(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

 Notes 31/03/2011

Revenue from operations (Gross) 18 5769.146

Less: Excise Duty 239.836

Revenue from operations (Net) 5529.310

Other Income 19 247.739

Total Revenue 5777.049

Cost of materials consumed 20 3314.988

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of Finished Goods and 

Work-in-Progress

21 (106.089)

22 718.858

Finance costs 23 0.059

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 9 111.356

Other Expenses 24 1138.457

5177.629

599.420

Current Tax 74.953

Deferred Tax charge/(credit) (10.258)

534.725

1. Basic [nominal value of ` 2 each (March 31, 2011 ` 2)] 30 2.89

2. Diluted [nominal value of ` 2 each (March 31, 2011 ` 2)] 30 2.89

2

As per our report of even date.

 

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Partner Executive Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership No. 044784

Place: Pune VP - Finance & Accounts Director
Date: 29th May, 2012 and Company Secretary
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2012

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

A.

1119.229

1.244

Gain on redemption of mutual fund investments (208.735)

22.741

(15.977)

Provision for diminution in investments -

Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (net) 1.736

141.730 111.356

Interest earned (102.570)

(28.923)

Interest charged 1.448 0.059

931.923

(555.700)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (including contracts in progress) (547.815)

(2.053) 5.921

(109.545)

(0.005) 993.500

90.682

464.692

2.342

79.062 56.613

Cash generated from operations 353.583

refunds

(169.394)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 184.189

B.

(359.815)

(647.022)

(5730.094)

-

Sale of investments

6826.929

150.000

2.485 9.391

Interest received on investments 99.015

28.923

0.100

NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 370.521
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2012 

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

C.

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options - 2.019

Payment towards buy-back of Shares (405.828) -

Dividend paid including dividend distribution tax (270.590) -

Interest paid (1.448) (0.059)

NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (677.866) 1.960

(123.156) 358.248

525.085 167.042

19.833 (0.205)

421.762 525.085

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Cash Flow Statement

As per our report of even date.

 

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Partner Executive Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership No. 044784

Place: Pune VP - Finance & Accounts Director
Date: 29th May, 2012 and Company Secretary
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

1. Nature of business

statements. The adoption of revised Schedule VI does not impact recognition and measurement 

2.3 Use of estimates

future periods.

2.4 Revenue recognition

 a) Contract revenue 

Balance sheet date. Percentage of completion is determined as a proportion of costs 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

  Variations, claims and incentives are recognised as a part of contract revenue to the extent 

 b) Service revenue 

 c) Product sales

 d) Interest and dividend income

  Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognised using the time proportion method 

2.5 Tangible assets

2.6 Depreciation:

` 5,000 or less are depreciated at the rate of 100%. 

 Building and other constructions on leasehold land are depreciated over the lease term or the 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

2.7 Intangible assets and amortisation

Asset Useful Life

Brand

2.8 Impairment of assets

date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the 

2.9 Investments

 On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price 

in the value of the investments.

2.10  Inventories
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 

estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.11 Foreign currency transactions

 Initial recognition

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign 

currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at 

the date of the transaction.

 Conversion

 Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the 

reporting date.

 Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign 

currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

 Forward Contracts

 The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contract is amortised 

and recognised as an expense/income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on 

such contracts, except the contracts which are long-term foreign currency monetary items, are 

recognised as income or as expense for the period.

2.12 Leases 

and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

 

employee renders the related service.

 

on an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.  Actuarial gains and losses 

 

which the contribution is due.

incentives.  These are measured based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent 

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

2.14 Provisions and Contingencies

provision or disclosure is made.  

2.15 Income taxes 

accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

Guidance Note 

on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax  

Act, 1961, 

2.16 Earnings per share

element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have 

during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents
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31/03/2012 31/03/2011

3. Share capital
Equity Share capital

Authorised shares (No. million)

of ` 2 each 900.000 900.000

shares of ` 2 each 359.096

359.096

a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding 
at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting period:

No. million Amount

184.779 369.557

 -  - 

5.231 10.461

Outstanding at the end of the period 179.548 359.096

b) Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 2 per share. Each holder of the 
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. 

` 1.62 (31st March, 2011 ` 1.26). 

c) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates:

The company does not have any holding or ultimate holding company.

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Equity shares of ` 2 each fully paid No. million % of holding % of holding

Pramod Chaudhari (Promoter) 32.40 18.05% 31.50

Parimal Chaudhari (Promoter) 15.30 8.52% 15.12

13.42 7.47%

13.65 7.60%

9.22 5.14%

e) Shares reserved for issue under options:

f) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and 

No. million

91.373

to contracts for consideration other than cash  - 

5.231

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012



Praj   Annual Report 2011-12 43

u

o
o

g

n

n

Sustaining

GrowingResilience
Sustaining, Growing

Sustaining Enduring

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Resilience,
Consolidating

Sustaining
Growing

SustainingResilience
nce

Resilience
Su

Gro
Resilience

Sustaining Enduring, Co

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience
Sustaining

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Consolidating

GrowingGrowing

SustainingResilience
Resilie

Resilien

Resilience
Enduring

Consolidating

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

4. Reserves and Surplus

Capital Reserve 0.033 0.033

Amalgamation Reserve 3.063 3.063

Capital Redemption Reserve

 -  - 

10.461  - 

Balance at the end of year 10.461  - 

Securities Premium

1128.653 1126.714

 - 1.939

405.828  - 

Balance at the end of year 722.825 1128.653

General Reserve

625.611 572.111

65.900 53.500

Balance at the end of year 691.511 625.611

3462.571 3251.936

658.245 534.725

287.493 232.821

46.639 37.769

65.900 53.500

3720.784 3462.571

Total Reserves and Surplus 5148.677 5219.931

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Non-current liabilities

5. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

268.987

268.987

(35.224)

(23.543)

Provision for diminution in investments (15.580) (15.951)

Long Term Capital losses (50.003) (51.193)

Other items (12.734) (15.912)

(137.084)

131.903

6. Long-term provisions

Provision for leave encashment 17.748

37.454 31.033

55.202

Current Liabilities

7. Trade Payable and other Current liabilities

34.934

1362.743

1397.677

1844.556

159.979

168.520

5.620 5.103

2178.675

8. Short-term provisions

Provision for taxation 1084.402 612.155

287.493

Provision for dividend tax on proposed dividend 46.639

Performance Incentive 128.625 50.501

Provision for leave encashment 24.550

6.000

1577.709

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Non-Current Assets
10. Non Current Investments

Unquoted equity investments

Pacecon Engineering Projects Limited 5.355 5.355
`10 each 

fully paid 
2.454

each fully paid 
BioCnergy Europa B.V. 35.262 35.262

fully paid 
72.029

9.281

each fully paid
645.711

`10 each fully paid

1.311
771.403

72.029
699.374 52.352

49.967

  
- 150.000

49.967

150.000
899.341 252.319
699.374 52.352
199.967
201.578

11. Long Term Loans and Advances
85.079
29.868 29.136

1.321
116.268

12. Other Non-Current Assets
100.020 100.015
100.020 100.015
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31/03/2012 31/03/2011

13. Current Investments (valued at lower of cost and fair 

value unless stated otherwise)

Quoted Mutual Funds

5,000,000 Units)
 - 50.000

 - 150.000

 - 150.000

Units)
 - 100.000

 - 20.000

 - 150.000

 - 100.250

 - 50.000

20,000,000 Units )
 - 200.000

15,000,000 Units)
 - 150.000

 - 50.000

 - 150.000

 - 50.000

Units)
 - 100.000

Units )
 - 150.000

Units )
 - 100.000

 - 100.000

15,000,000 Units)
 - 150.000

10,000,000 Units)
 - 100.000

15,000,000 Units)
 - 150.000

 - 100.000

 - 50.000

 - 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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31/03/2012 31/03/2011

13. Current Investments (valued at lower of cost and fair 

value unless stated otherwise) (Contd.)

100.000

100.000

100.000

Units)
100.000

100.000

Units)
100.000

100.000

100.000

Units)
150.000

Units)
150.000

Units)
100.000

100.000

Units) 
50.000

Total 1350.000

1350.000

1411.578

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Current Assets

14. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

581.979

98.583

60.273

740.835

15. Sundry debtors (unsecured)

Over six months

436.925

62.419

Others, considered good 2139.185

2638.529

62.419

2576.110

16. Cash and bank balances

On current accounts 202.868

211.000 10.000

On unclaimed dividend account 5.753

Cheques, drafts on hand  - 51.336

Cash on hand 2.141 2.603

421.762

Other bank balances

100.020 100.015

750.000

850.020

(100.020) (100.015)

750.000

1171.762

17. Short Term Loans and advances (Unsecured, considered 

good)

177.443 122.932

149.876

`

(31st March, 2011 `

991.898

142.234

1461.451

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

18. Revenue from operations

Sale of Goods 8277.007 5628.586

  Add: Closing Contracts in progress 529.041 47.219

  Less: Opening Contracts in progress 47.219 313.244

  Less: Excise duty 289.654 232.962

(a) 8469.175 5129.599

Sale of Services (b) 202.866 337.334

Other Operating Revenue (Scrap Sales) 146.850 69.251

 Less: Excise duty 14.450 6.874

(c) 132.400 62.377

Total Revenue from operations (Net) 8804.441 5529.310

19. Other income

Dividend from mutual fund investments 28.923 65.429

Gain on redemption of mutual fund investments (net) 208.735 27.700

Interest

` 8.463; 31st March, 

2011 : ` 6.884)

84.846 68.935

- others  (tax deducted at source ̀  0.845; 31st March, 2011 ̀  0.016) 17.724 10.040

Excess provision / creditors written back 15.977 45.696

Other non-operating income (Refer Note 43) 76.090 29.939

432.295 247.739

20. Cost of materials consumed

Raw material consumed 5487.553 3314.988

5487.553 3314.988

Details of materials consumed:

Stainless Steel material-plates, coils, tubes etc. 1044.624 684.197

Other Raw materials, intermediaries, components, bought outs & 

other items

4442.929 2630.791

5487.553 3314.988

21. (Increase)/Decrease in inventories of Finished Goods 

and Work in Progress

Inventories at the end of the year

Work in Progress 98.583 63.745

Finished goods 60.273 64.960

158.856 128.705

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Work in Progress 63.745 15.902

Finished goods 64.960 6.714

128.705 22.616

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (30.151) (106.089)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

22.

799.875

28.724

14.393

41.595

884.587

23. Finance costs

Interest Expense 1.448 0.059

1.448 0.059

24. Other Expenses

Consumption of Stores and spares 116.961

249.408

296.616

22.741

Sales commission 237.464

Travel and conveyance 144.798 116.092

Professional consultancy charges 114.790

Insurance 20.894

27.007

48.360

23.089

Communication expenses 20.636

Testing charges 17.691

Building 8.044

Plant and Machinery 17.649 11.015

Others 35.514 29.951

for audit services 2.361 2.295

for taxation services 0.400

for other services 0.155 0.155

0.050 0.020

3.068

1.551

1.244

Loss on Sale/Provision for diminution in value of investment -

29.283

Miscellaneous expenses 192.566

1632.340

`
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

25. Capital commitments, contingent liabilities and secured loans

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Capital commitments

account and not provided for (net of advances)

47.370

Contingent liabilities

35.679

sales tax 1.191

181.773

39.090

Secured Loans

property situated at Pune.

129.711

26. Disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standard 7 (Revised) – Construction Contracts

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Contract revenue recognised during the year 8115.099

(less recognised losses)

8115.099

Customer advances outstanding for contracts in progress 1617.851 1001.633

295.433

Contracts in progress) 

689.020

(159.979)

27. Segment reporting
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

 Secondary segmental information

Particulars India Rest of the world Total

31/03/2012 31/03/2011 31/03/2012 31/03/2011 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Segment sales 4533.935 4270.506 8804.441 5529.310

Segment assets 1558.955 1017.155 2576.110

28. Related party transactions

 a) Parties where control exists 

Subsidiaries Pacecon Engineering Projects Limited

BioCnergy Europa B.V. 

 b) Key management personnel and their relatives 

Executive Chairman Mr. Pramod Chaudhari

Mrs. Parimal Chaudhari

 c) Transactions and balances with related parties have been set out below:

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Pacecon Engineering Projects Limited

- 10.000

24.340

BioCnergy Europa B.V.

Sale of Goods and Services - 5.651

3.206

12.317 5.656

4.800

Praj Far East Co. Limited 

Sales commission 16.875

-

0.762 1.619
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Praj Jaragua Bioenergia S.A.

Sales Commission 4.123 -

Capital contribution - 4.548

Praj Americas Inc.

Sales Commission 17.986 6.167

Payable 0.981 6.333

Expenses incurred and reimbursed thereof 0.056 8.866

Capital contribution - 9.281

Praj Industries (Africa) Pty. Limited

Capital contribution 1.311 -

Neela Systems Limited

Capital contribution 645.711 -

Pramod Chaudhari

60.327 45.993

Dividend 39.690 -

Payable 24.030 13.950

Gajanan Nabar ( From 15-11-2010)

22.544 22.566

Payable 4.280 8.846

Shashank Inamdar ( Upto 14-11-2010)

- 6.878

Dividend - -

Parimal Chaudhari

0.990 0.630

Dividend 14.515 -

Payable 0.990 0.630

29. Leases 

residential premises for its employees. Certain lease arrangements provide for cancellation by 

either party and also contain a clause for renewal of the lease agreement.  Lease payments on 

account and the future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases 

are summarised below:

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable 

leases

 - amount due within one year from the Balance sheet date 17.979  21.469

 5.240 21.387

4.130 4.206

 - cancellable leases 5.233 6.158

 - non-cancellable leases 21.774 22.231

28. Related party transactions (Contd.)

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

30.  Earnings per share

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing 

earnings per share

Number of shares considered as basic weighted average shares 

outstanding for computing basic earnings per share

184,090,695 184,756,383

Add: effect of dilutive issue of shares/options 112,682 122,856

Number of shares considered as weighted average shares and 

potential shares outstanding for computing diluted earnings per share

184,203,377 184,879,239

Computation of basic and diluted earnings per share

658.245 534.725

` 2 each 3.58 2.89

` 2 each 3.57 2.89

31. Cash and cash equivalents

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

At the beginning of the year

53.939 2.671

Balances with banks* 461.146 164.371

Deposits with banks   10.000          Nil

525.085  167.042

At the end of the year

2.141 53.939

Balances with banks* 208.621 461.146

Deposits with banks 211.000    10.000

421.762 525.085

 Notes:

` 850.020                                    

 2. *Balance with bank include bank balances in relation to unclaimed dividends ` 5.753  

(31st March, 2011: 5.257)

32. Quantitative information of foreign exchange instruments outstanding as at the Balance 

Sheet date

USD 19.750 millions and GBP Nil (31st March, 2011: USD 20.850 millions, GBP Nil).  

Nature of exposure 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Balances in bank accounts 36.008 68.460

Advances paid 132.299 44.731

447.211 248.644

Advances received

Receivables

921.538             

 21.459

527.840

3.876

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

 

  The Company has recognised ` 28.724 (31st March, 2011 ` 27.882) towards post 

 

  Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of obligation

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

71.893 66.758    

9.859

Interest cost                                                                                                                     5.815 5.011

  (1.972) (8.250)

2.496 0.365

88.091

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

35.116 32.500

3.514 3.006

 5.744     -

- -

 0.263

44.637 35.116

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

9.859

Interest cost                                                                                                                 5.815 5.011

(3.514) (3.006)

2.233 0.755

14.393

                                                                                                     31/03/2012 31/03/2011

88.091

 (44.637) (35.116)

Net liability                                                                                                               43.454 36.777
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

  Actual return on plan assets

Particulars                                                                                                        31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Expected return on plan assets                                                                                3.514 3.006

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets                                                                       0.263 (0.390)

Actual return on plan assets                                                                                    3.777 2.616

  Principal actuarial assumptions

Particulars                                                                                                                                                  31/03/2012 

(%)

31/03/2011 

(%)

Discount rate                                                                                                              8.50% 8.20%

Expected rate of return on plan assets                                                                  9.25% 9.25%

Salary increment rate                                                                                               8.00% 8.00%

  Composition of plan assets 

Particulars                                                                                                 31/03/2012 

(%)

31/03/2011 

(%)

Central government securities                                                                              53.04% 53.04%

State government securities                                                                                    0.00% 0.00%

Approved marketable securities                                                                             0.00% 0.00%

Bonds/debentures etc                                                                                           42.77% 42.77%

Loans                                                                                                                            0.00% 0.00%

Equity                                                                                                                           4.00% 4.00%

Liquid fund/money market instruments                                                              0.19% 0.19%

Total                                                                                                                         100.00% 100.00%

  Notes:

  1. Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on actuarial expectation of the average 
long-term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of 
the obligations.

34. Employee stock options

 The Compensation Committee of the Company established the Employee Stock Option Plan on 

stock options were approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 23 July 

options out of Grant II to grant them to new CEO & MD in terms of his appointment letter and also 

to senior executives of the Company at the relevant market price as Grant IV. The total options 

to Senior Executives of the Company with vesting period of 2 years.

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

 The stock options vest in a graded manner equally over the period of vesting, each vesting taking 

effect as per the terms of the grant. The stock options granted are exercisable at 100% of the fair 

market value of the underlying equity shares of the Company as on the date of grant. 

 Grant I 

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year (*) - 53,902

Granted during the year - -

Less: Exercised - 36,131

Less: Cancelled - 17,771

Options outstanding at the end of the year - -

Options exercisable at the end of the year - -

 (*) Grant I exercise period has been extended by one year as approved in Board Meeting                     

held on 9th July, 2009.

 Grant II

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year - 1,860,359

Granted during the year - -

Less: Exercised - -

Less: Cancelled - 1,860,359

Options outstanding at the end of the year - -

Options exercisable at the end of the year - -

 Grant III

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,427,250 2,848,876
Granted during the year - -

Additional options on account of allotment of bonus shares - -
Less: Exercised - 4,100
Less: Cancelled 298,650 417,526
Options outstanding at the end of the year 2,128,600 2,427,250
Options exercisable at the end of the year 783,049 310,449

 Grant IV (*)

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,950,000 -

Granted during the year - 1,950,000

Less: Exercised - -

Less: Cancelled 21,000 -

Options outstanding at the end of the year 1,929,000 1,950,000

Options exercisable at the end of the year - -

 (*) Grant IV consists of Plan A-1,250,000 options and Plan B - 700,000 options.

35. Expenditure on research and development activities

 Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged under respective heads of 

account in the year in which it is incurred. Capital expenditure on research and development is 

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

95.939

177.693

36. Dividends remitted in foreign currency: 

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

2 -

7,173,385 -

2010-11 2010-11

9.038 -

37. Imported and indigenous raw materials, intermediates components and spares consumed 

during the year:

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

% %

4362.572 78 83

1211.791 22

                                                    5574.363 100 100

38. Value of imports on CIF basis: 

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

409.559

82.705

754.056

39. Earnings in foreign currency: 

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

3513.562

119.986

40. Expenditure in foreign currency:

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

226.038

6.185

28.187

47.185

41. Taxes

`
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

  As on the date of adoption of accounts by the Board of directors (29th May, 2012), the 

Company is yet to receive a demand notice from the Income Tax Department and is also in 

the process of gathering information/documents and  tax advice. Due to this, the Company 
is not in a position to reliably estimate the liability (if any) arising out of these proceedings. 
The management, on the basis of best estimate, has made a prudential provision of  
` 

42. Buy-back of Shares

26th December, 2011 as per section 77A of the Companies Act, 1956. Pursuant to the board 
of directors approval for buy-back the Company has bought back 5,230,631 shares upto 31st 
March, 2012 through open market transactions for an aggregate amount of ̀  405.828, by utilising 
Securities Premium of ̀  405.828. Capital Redemption Reserve has been created out of securities 
premium for `10.461 being the nominal value of shares bought back in terms of Section 77A of 
the Companies Act, 1956. 

Company has bought back (including above) total 7,313,644 shares for an aggregate amount of 
` 558.638. 

43. Insurance Claim

 During the year the Company has received insurance claim of ` 60.351 (31st March, 2011:  
` 59.413) for damage occurred for certain project from Insurance Company. 

44. Acquisition of Neela Systems Limited

total consideration of ` 645.711.  

45. Prior year comparatives

 Till the year end 31st March

particularly presentation of balance sheet.  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Praj Industries Limited

Pramod Chaudhari Gajanan Nabar
Executive Chairman CEO & Managing Director

Dattatraya Nimbolkar Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer
Place: Pune VP - Finance & Accounts Director
Date: 29th May, 2012 and Company Secretary
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Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditors’ Report to the Board of Directors of Praj Industries Limited on the Consolidated 

Financial Statements of Praj Industries Limited and its Subsidiaries.

1) We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Praj Industries Limited (‘the 

Company’), its Subsidiaries; hereinafter referred to as the “Group” as at March 31, 2012, the 

statements based on our audit.

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

constitute total assets of `1,098.138 million as at March 31, 2012, total revenue of `384.238 

`

assets of ` 616.799 million as at March 31, 2012, total revenue of `589.805 million and net cash 

` 

(as amended).

statements of the components, and to the best of our information and according to the 

 a) In the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 

March 31, 2012;

on that date; and

that date.

B. K. Khare & Co.

Padmini Khare Kaicker

 

Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2012

As per our report of even date.

For B. K. Khare & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Praj Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Padmini Khare Kaicker Pramod Chaudhari Gajanan Nabar
Partner Executive Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership No. 044784

Dattatraya Nimbolkar Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer
Place: Pune VP - Finance & Accounts Director
Date: 29th May, 2012 and Company Secretary

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Notes 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds  

Share capital 3 359.096 369.557

Reserves and surplus 4 5174.588 5219.567

Non-current liabilities

Long Term borrowings 5 24.000  - 

Deferred tax liability (net) 6 120.881 127.076

Long term provisions 7 58.120 52.860

Current liabilities

Short term borrowings 8 189.544  - 

Trade Payables 9 2062.486 1746.112

Other current liabilities 10 2600.776 1752.458

Short term provisions 11 1704.751 971.986

Minority Interest 255.492 31.553

TOTAL 12549.734 10271.169

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets 12 1939.215 1365.286

Intangible Assets 12 28.312 55.166

Goodwill 12 439.524 2.269

Capital Work-in-Progress 98.086 139.054

Non Current Investments 13 200.077 200.077

Long Term Loans and Advances 14 118.760 67.816

Other Non Current Assets 15 100.020 100.015

Current Assets

Current Investments 16 1350.000 2388.100

Inventories 17 906.200 630.855

Contracts in progress 29 722.083 269.893

Trade Receivables 18 3298.411 2243.385

Cash and bank balances 19 1618.068 1579.463

Short Term Loans and advances 20 1730.978 1229.790

TOTAL 12549.734 10271.169

2
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for the year ended 31st March, 2012

As per our report of even date.

For B. K. Khare & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Padmini Khare Kaicker Pramod Chaudhari Gajanan Nabar
Partner Executive Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership No. 044784

Dattatraya Nimbolkar Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer
Place: Pune VP - Finance & Accounts Director
Date: 29th May, 2012 and Company Secretary

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Notes 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Income:

Revenue from operations (Gross) 21 10356.146 6889.127

Less: Excise Duty 325.044 239.836

Revenue from operations (Net) 10031.102 6649.291

Other income 22 443.375 253.051

Total Revenue 10474.477 6902.342

Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 23 5697.546 3648.539

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories of Finished Goods and 

Work in Progress

24 (17.416) 233.824

25 955.714 755.831

Finance costs 26 11.539 0.173

Depreciation and amortisation 12 163.472 111.989

Other Expenses 27 2469.002 1495.006

Total Expenses 9279.857 6245.362

1194.620 656.980

Less: Prior period items (net) 1.792  - 

1192.828 656.980

Tax Expense

 - Current tax 496.786 78.376

 - Deferred tax charge/(credit) (7.258) 8.622

703.300 569.982

Minority interest 24.358 (7.531)

678.942 577.513

Earning per share

1. Basic [nominal value of ` 2 each (March 31, 2011 ` 2)] 33  3.69  3.13 

2. Diluted [nominal value of ` 2 each (March 31, 2011 ` 2)] 33  3.69  3.12 

2
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2012

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

A.

1192.828 656.980

5.123 2.457

Gain on redemption of mutual fund investments (208.735) (27.700)

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 27.352 34.403

(19.753) (47.510)

Unrealised foreign exchange (loss) (net) 1.736 (14.226)

Depreciation and amortisation 163.472 111.989

Interest earned (108.258) (82.115)

Dividend from mutual fund investments (28.943) (65.445)

Interest charged 11.539 0.173

1036.361 569.006

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (820.139) (1092.630)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (including contracts in progress) (433.442) (149.431)

(Increase)/decrease in long term loans and advances (2.130) 5.809

(Increase)/decrease in short term loans and advances (167.008) (135.417)

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (23.918) 1002.753

(3.052)

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 141.082 717.438

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 686.274 237.083

Increase/(decrease) in long term provisions (3.646) (17.641)

Increase/(decrease) in short term provisions 79.370 56.613

Cash generated from operations 489.752 1193.583

Direct taxes paid (including taxes deducted at source), net of 

refunds

(169.647) (60.622)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 320.105 1132.961

B.

(364.296) (250.221)

(642.803)

(5730.094) (7677.328)

 - (49.967)

Sale of investments

6826.929 7827.501

150.000

3.022 14.008

Interest received on investments 103.817 81.294

Dividend received on investments 28.943 65.445

(10.054) (750.100)

NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 365.464 (739.368)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2012

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

C.

Increase in long term borrowings 2.087  - 

Decrease in long term borrowings (8.085)  - 

Increase in short term borrowings from Bank 259.963  - 

Decrease in short term borrowings from Bank (259.259)  - 

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options  - 1.939

Payment towards buy-back of Shares (405.828)  - 

Dividend paid including dividend distribution tax (270.590)  - 

Interest paid (11.539) (0.173)

NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (693.251) 1.766

(7.682) 395.359

789.517 394.363

19.833 (0.205)

801.668 789.517

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

As per our report of even date.

 

Praj Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

Pramod Chaudhari
Partner Executive Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership No. 044784

Place: Pune VP - Finance & Accounts Director
Date: 29th May, 2012 and Company Secretary
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

1. Nature of business

 Praj Industries Limited (the Parent Company) is a public company domiciled in India and 

subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘the Group’), have been prepared and presented under 

the current year.

2.3 Use of estimates

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and 

prospectively in current and future periods.

2.4 Basis of consolidation

 % of shareholding in equity shares

Name of the subsidiary Country of incorporation 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

India  99.53%  99.53%

Thailand 100.00% 100.00%

100.00% 100.00%

 60.00%  60.00%

Brazil  54.00%  54.00%

India  50.20%

100.00%

for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

 The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary Company over the net assets 

Reserve as the case may be.

2.5 Goodwill arising on consolidation

circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may be impaired, for diminution other than temporary.

2.6 Revenue recognition

 a) Contract revenue

period in which the facts requiring the revision become known.

 b) Service revenue

 c) Product sales
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

 d) Interest and dividend income

  Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognised using the time proportion method 
based on the underlying interest rates.

 

2.7 Tangible assets:

2.8 Depreciation:

arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management, or those prescribed under 

` 5,000 or less are depreciated at the rate of 100%.

 Building and other constructions on leasehold land are depreciated over the lease term or the 

2.9 Intangible assets and amortisation

Group and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

2.10 Impairment of assets

exist, the assets recoverable amount is estimated, as the higher of the net selling price and the 

cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. If at the Balance Sheet date, there is an 
indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount 
is reassessed and the asset is reinstated at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of 
depreciable historical cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

2.11 Investments

 On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price 
and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

in the value of the investments.

2.12 Inventories

includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on 

estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Foreign currency transactions

 Initial recognition

the date of the transaction.

 Conversion

reporting date.

currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

 Forward Contracts

recognised as income or as expense for the period.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

 Income and expense items are translated by using a monthly simple average exchange rate for 
the period.

 Assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary are translated at the closing rate.

 All resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve 

2.15 Leases

and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 

employee renders the related service.

 

on an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses 

 

which the contribution is due.

 

incentives. These are measured based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an 

gains and losses and past service costs are recognised immediately in the Statement of 

2.17 Provisions and contingencies

settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. A 
disclosure by way of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 

provision or disclosure is made.

2.18 Income taxes

 Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961.

accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for 
the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to items recognised 

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by 

the tax holiday period, to the extent the Group’s gross total income is subject to the deduction 

the Group restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably 

unrecognised deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually 

such deferred tax assets can be realised.

to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to 

taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Guidance Note on Accounting for 
Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961, the said 

2.19 Earnings per share

number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus 
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of 

change in resources.

during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

3. Share capital

31/03/2012 31/03/2011
Equity Share capital
Authorised shares (No. million) 900.000 900.000

` 2 each
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (No. million)

` 2 each 359.096 369.557
359.096 369.557

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting 
period:

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

No. million Amount

184.779 369.557 184.738 369.477

note 37)

 -  - 0.040 0.080

5.231 10.461

Outstanding at the end of the period 179.548 359.096 184.779 369.557

b. Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares:

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `
holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays 
dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 

 During the year ended March 31, 2012, the amount of per share dividend recognised as 
` 1.62 (March 31, 2011 ` 1.26)

remaining assets of the Company after distributing all preferential amounts.

c. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates:

 The Company does not have any holding or ultimate holding company.

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

31/03/2012 31/03/2011
No. million % of holding % of holding

Pramod Chaudhari (Promoter) 32.40 18.05% 31.50 17.05%
Parimal Chaudhari (Promoter) 15.30 8.52% 15.12 8.18%

13.42 7.48% 13.42 7.26%
13.65 7.60% 12.40 6.71%

9.22 5.14%
e. Shares reserved for issue under options:

f. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than 

reporting date:

31/03/2012 31/03/2011
No. million

securities premium*
91.373 91.373

consideration other than cash
 - 

5.231

 * The Company has declared Bonus in th
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

4. Reserves and Surplus

Capital reserve 0.033 0.033

Amalgamation reserve 3.063 3.063

Capital redemption reserve

 -  - 

Add: Transferred from securities premium (Refer note 39) 10.461  - 

Balance at the end of year 10.461  - 

Securities premium account

1128.653 1126.714

Add: ESOPs exercised  - 1.939

Less: Utilisation for buy-back of equity shares (Refer note 39) 405.828  - 

Balance at the end of the year 722.825 1128.653

General reserve

627.600 574.100

65.900 53.500

Balance at the end of the year 693.500 627.600

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 1.600 (0.388)

Add: Due to transactions during the year 5.578 1.988

Balance at the end of the year 7.178 1.600

3458.618 3205.195

678.942 577.513

Less: Appropriations

Dividend 287.493 232.821

Tax on dividend 46.639 37.769

Transfer to General reserve 65.900 53.500

3737.528 3458.618

Total Reserves and Surplus 5174.588 5219.567

 Non-Current liabilities

 Term Loan Borrowings from Banks 24.000  - 

24.000  - 

Notes:

(a) Term Loan facility of the subsidiary Neela Systems Ltd., is from State Bank of India (IFB), Malad 

(West), Mumbai is repaid by an equal monthly instalment of ` 20 millions per month.

acquired, wherever situated. It is further collaterally secured by mortgage of Land at Wada of the 

at 4/8 and 4/5, Piramal Industrial Estate and also by way of extension of Equitable Mortgage on 

Residential Flat, 1101 of Himanshu Shah (Managing Director).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

6. Deferred tax liability (net)

Deferred tax liability

Difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ 269.922 259.455

Deferred tax asset

(35.224) (0.083)

- provision for doubtful debts and advances (24.667) (17.656)

- provision for diminution in investments (15.580) (15.951)

- long term capital loss (50.003) (47.496)

- other items (23.567) (51.193)

(149.041) (132.379)

Deferred tax liability (net) 120.881 127.076

7. Long term provisions

Provision for leave encashment 19.134 21.827

Provision for gratuity 38.986 31.033

58.120 52.860

 Current liabilities

8. Short Term Borrowings

 Secured Loans

 Cash Credit Loan 189.544 -

189.544 -

Notes

(a) Cash Credit facility of the subsidiary Neela Systems Ltd., is from 

charge on the Company’s entire stock and collaterally secured by 

assets both present and future, wherever situated. It is further 

collaterally secured by mortgage of Land at Wada of the Company.

(c) Further the facilities are Collaterally Secured by way of Equitable 

Estate and also by way of extension of Equitable Mortgage on 

Residential Flat, 1101 of Himanshu Shah (Managing Director).

(d) The balance of Fixed deposit with State Bank of India of ` 16.508 

million is under lien to lenders SBI as margin money for bank 

guarantee and letter of credit as security and also as security for 

cash credit account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

9. Trade Payables

37.153 3.462

2025.333 1742.650

2062.486 1746.112

10. Other current liabilities

2115.902 1502.629

213.884 222.107

 Current Maturities of Long Term Loan from Bank 24.001

 Other Payables 241.369 22.619

 Unclaimed dividend 5.620 5.103

2600.776 1752.458

11. Short term provisions

 Provision for taxation 1211.136 621.283

287.493 232.821

 Provision for dividend tax on proposed dividend 46.639 37.769

 Performance Incentive 128.625 50.501

 Provision for leave encashment 24.749 23.868

 Provision for gratuity 6.109 5.744

1704.751 971.986
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

 Non Current Assets

13. Non Current Investments:

 

49.967 49.967

 

 - 150.000

150.000

199.967 199.967

Investment in Shares 0.102 0.102

`20 each fully paid of The 

0.008 0.008

0.110 0.110

200.077 200.077

0.110 0.110

199.967 199.967

Market value of quoted investments 201.578 199.967

14. Long Term Loans and Advances

85.283 38.033

 Deposits 32.156 29.783

1.321

118.760 67.816

15. Other Non Current Assets

100.020 100.015

100.020 100.015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

16. Current Investments (valued at lower of cost and fair value 

unless stated otherwise)

Quoted Mutual Funds

50.000

150.000

150.000

100.000

721,144.312 Units)
20.000

150.000

Units)
100.250

50.000

200.000

150.000

50.000

150.000

50.000

100.000

150.000

100.000

100.000

15,000,000 Units)
150.000

10,000,000 Units)
100.000

15,000,000 Units)
150.000

10,000,000 Units)
100.000

5,000,000 Units)
50.000

17.850

Units)
100.000

100.000

100.000

100.000

100.000

100.000

100.000

100.000

150.000

150.000

100.000

Units)
100.000

50.000

Total 1350.000 2388.100

1350.000 2388.100

Market value of quoted investments 1411.578 2456.069
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Current Assets

17. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

700.012 499.837

 Work in progress 145.915 66.058

60.273 64.960

 Total 906.200 630.855

18. Trade Receivables

 Unsecured

 Over six months

513.116 271.001

70.442 48.802

 Others, considered good 2785.295 1972.384

3368.853 2292.187

70.442 48.802

3298.411 2243.385

19. Cash and bank balances

in current accounts 580.650 719.340

211.000 10.000

On unclaimed dividend account 5.753 5.257

 Cheques, drafts on hand - 51.336

 Cash on hand 4.265 3.584

 Sub total 801.668 789.517

 Other bank balances  - 

100.020 100.015

12 months

800.000 789.946

 Margin money deposits 16.400

(100.020) (100.015)

 Total 1618.068 1579.463

20. Short Term Loans and advances

266.254 152.299

154.588 189.721

` 65.204  1114.466 840.962

195.670 46.808

 Total 1730.978 1229.790



Praj   Annual Report 2011-1280

Sustaining

GrowingResilience
Sustaining, Growing

Sustaining Enduring

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Resilience,
Consolidating

Sustaining
Growing

SustainingResilience
nce

Resilience
Su

Gro
Resilience

Sustaining Enduring, Co

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience
Sustaining

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Consolidating

GrowingGrowing

SustainingResilience
Resilie

Resilien

Resilience
Enduring

Consolidating

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

21. Revenue from operations

 Sale of Goods 8883.058 6449.801

 Add: Closing Contracts in progress 508.199 47.789

 Less: Opening Contracts in progress 47.789 308.958

 Less: Excise duty 310.594 232.962

(a) 9032.874 5955.670

 Sale of Services (b) 865.828 631.244

 Other Operating Revenue (Scrap Sales) 146.850 69.251

 Less: Excise duty 14.450 6.874

(c) 132.400 62.377

 Total Revenue from operations (Net) 10031.102 6649.291

22. Other income

 Dividend from mutual fund investments 28.943 65.445

 Gain on redemption of mutual fund investments (net) 208.735 27.700

 Interest

88.906 72.075

 - others 19.315 10.040

 Excess provision / creditors written back 19.753 47.510

 Other non-operating income 77.723 30.281

443.375 253.051

23. Cost of materials consumed

 Raw material consumed 5697.546 3648.539

5697.546 3648.539

 Details of materials consumed:

 Stainless Steel material-plates, coils, tubes etc. 1133.481 753.058

 Other Raw materials, intermediaries, components, bought 

outs & other items

4564.065 2895.481

5697.546 3648.539

24. (Increase)/Decrease in inventories of Finished Goods 

and Work in Progress 

 Inventories at the end of the year

 Work in Progress 145.915 66.058

 Finished goods 60.273 64.960

206.188 131.018

 Inventories at the beginning of the year

 Work in Progress 123.812 64.419

 Finished goods 64.960 300.423

188.772 364.842

 (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (17.416) 233.824



Praj   Annual Report 2011-12 81

u

o
o

g

n

n

Sustaining

GrowingResilience
Sustaining, Growing

Sustaining Enduring

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Resilience,
Consolidating

Sustaining
Growing

SustainingResilience
nce

Resilience
Su

Gro
Resilience

Sustaining Enduring, Co

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience
Sustaining

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Consolidating

GrowingGrowing

SustainingResilience
Resilie

Resilien

Resilience
Enduring

Consolidating

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

873.100 680.693

25.023 28.605

14.393 10.769

43.198 35.764

955.714 755.831

26. Finance costs

11.539 0.173

11.539 0.173

27. Other Expenses

116.961 64.487

Site expenses and labour charges 487.395 439.792

299.301 154.921

28.028 34.403

Sales commission 203.326 50.935

Travel and conveyance 160.510 121.286

Professional consultancy charges 701.767 339.26

Insurance 23.794 16.521

29.277 29.802

49.179 33.202

23.679 23.639

Communication expenses 24.494 17.882

Testing charges 17.839 10.886

8.044 2.988

17.761 11.015

35.783 30.027

5.790 3.987

0.450 0.500

0.198 0.202

0.050 0.020

3.068

1.779 1.405

1.244 1.940

32.444 (42.104)

Miscellaneous expenses 196.841 148.010

2469.002 1495.006

*Includes `
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

28. Capital commitments, contingent liabilities and secured loans

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Capital commitments

account and not provided for (net of advances)

47.370 141.128

Contingent liabilities

35.679 35.831

sales tax

1.191 39.090

Guarantee issued in respect of obligations of a subsidiary 181.773

129.711 292.064

29. Disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standard 7 (Revised) – Construction Contracts

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Contract revenue recognised during the year 8388.626 5192.864

(less recognised losses)

8388.626 5192.864

Customer advances outstanding for contracts in progress 1685.663 1060.989

306.112 298.135

Contracts in progress) 

722.083 269.893

Dues to customers relating to contracts in progress)

(213.884) (222.107)

30. Segment reporting

 The Group’s activities involve predominantly one business segment i.e. Process and Project 

segmental reporting. Geographical sales are segregated based on the location of the customer 

 Secondary segmental information

Particulars India Rest of the world Total

31/03/2012 31/03/2011 31/03/2012 31/03/2011 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Segment sales 5115.585 4070.252 4915.519 2579.038 10031.10 6649.290

Segment assets 1873.887 1505.404 1424.524 737.981 3298.41 2243.385
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31. Related party transactions

 a) Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr. Pramod Chaudhari

Mrs. Parimal Chaudhari

 b) Transactions and balances with related parties have been set out below:

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Pramod Chaudhari

60.327 45.993

Dividend 39.690

Payable 24.030  13.950

Gajanan Nabar (From 15-11-2010)

22.544 22.566

Payable  4.280 8.846

Shashank Inamdar (Up to 14-11-2010)

- 6.878

Dividend -

Parimal Chaudhari

0.990 0.630

Dividend 14.515

Payable 0.990 0.630

32. Leases

residential premises for its employees. Certain lease arrangements provide for cancellation by 

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable 

leases

17.979 21.469 

 5.240 21.387

4.130 4.206

7.503 7.571

21.774 22.231

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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33. Earnings per share

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing 

earnings per share

outstanding for computing basic earnings per share

184,090,695 184,756,383

112,682 122,856

potential shares outstanding for computing diluted earnings per share

184,203,377 184,879,239

Computation of basic and diluted earnings per share

shareholders 

678.942 577.513

Basic earnings per equity share of ` 2 each 3.69 3.13

Diluted earnings per equity share of ` 2 each 3.69 3.12

34. Cash and cash equivalents

At the beginning of the year 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

54.920  3.624

720.369 389.140 

 1.673  1.599

776.962  394.363

At the end of the year

4.131 54.920

586.536 720.369

211.000   1.673

801.667 776.962

 Notes:

` 916.420 
` 898.288) are not readily liquid and have been excluded from cash and 

cash equivalents and `

`5.753 (March 
`5.257)

35. Quantitative information of foreign exchange instruments outstanding as at the Balance 
Sheet date

Nature of exposure 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Balances in bank accounts  36.698 68.561

132.299 44.731

Payables representing creditors and other payables 438.727 232.965

921.538 527.840

21.459 3.876

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

 

  The Group has recognised ` 28.724 (March 31, 2011 `

 

  Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of obligation

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Liability at the beginning of the year 71.893 66.758 

Current service cost 9.859 8.009

Interest cost 5.815 5.011

(1.972) (8.250)

2.496 0.365

Liability at the end of the year 88.091 71.893

  Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of fair value of plan assets

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

35.116 32.500

3.514 3.006

Contributions by the employer 5.744

-

0.263 (0.390)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 44.637 35.116

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Current service cost 9.859 8.009

Interest cost 5.815 5.011

(3.514) (3.006)

Total actuarial (gain)/loss 2.233 0.755

Total expenses 14.393 10.769

  Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

88.091 71.893

(44.637) (35.116)

Net liability 43.454 36.777
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

  Actual return on plan assets

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Expected return on plan assets 3.514 3.006

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 0.263 (0.390)

Actual return on plan assets 3.777 2.616

  Principal actuarial assumptions

Particulars 31/03/2012 

(%)

31/03/2011 

(%)

Discount rate 8.50% 8.20%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 9.25% 9.25%

Salary increment rate 8.00% 8.00%

  Composition of plan assets

Particulars 31/03/2012 

(%)

31/03/2011 

(%)

Central government securities 53.04% 53.04%

State government securities 0.00% 0.00%

Approved marketable securities 0.00% 0.00%

Bonds/debentures etc. 42.77% 42.77%

Loans 0.00% 0.00%

Equity 4.00% 4.00%

Liquid fund/money market instrument 0.19% 0.19%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

  Notes:

  1. Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on actuarial expectation of the average 
long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of 
the obligations.

37. Employee stock options

 The Compensation Committee of the Company established the Employee Stock Option Plan on 
23 July 2005. Employees covered by the Plan are granted an option to purchase shares of the 

stock options were approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 23 July 

on 9 July 2009 (‘Grant III’) with a vesting period of 3 years. Stock options under Grant II lapsed on 
28 December 2010. In the Meeting of the Compensation and Share Allotment Committee held on 
16th November 2010 it was decided to utilise the surrendered and lapsed options out of Grant II 
to grant them to new CEO & MD in terms of his appointment letter and also to Senior Executives 
of the Company at the relevant market price as Grant IV. The total options granted under Grant 

Company with vesting period of 2 years.

effect as per the terms of the grant. The stock options granted are exercisable at 100% of the fair 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

market value of the underlying equity shares of the Company as on the date of grant.

 Grant I

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year (*) - 53,902

Granted during the year - -

Less: Exercised - 36,131

Less: Cancelled - 17,771

Options outstanding at the end of the year - -

Options exercisable at the end of the year - -

 (*) Grant I exercise period has been extended by one year as approved in Board Meeting held on 
9 July 2009.

 Grant II

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year - 1,860,359

Granted during the year - -

Less: Exercised - -

Less: Cancelled - 1,860,359

Options outstanding at the end of the year - -

Options exercisable at the end of the year - -

 Grant III

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,427,250 2,848,876

Granted during the year - -

Additional options on account of allotment of bonus shares - -

Less: Exercised - 4,100

Less: Cancelled 298,650 417,526

Options outstanding at the end of the year 2,128,600 2,427,250

Options exercisable at the end of the year 783,049 310,449

 Grant IV (*)

Particulars 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,950,000 -

Granted during the year - 1,950,000

Less: Exercised - -

Less: Cancelled 21,000 -

Options outstanding at the end of the year 1,929,000 1,950,000

Options exercisable at the end of the year - -

 (*) Grant IV consists of Plan A - 1,250,000 options and Plan B - 700,000 options.

38. Taxes

  The Group has not recognised MAT credit entitlement to the extent of ` 220.381 in respect of 
Income Tax paid in view of uncertainty of its utilisation for payment of tax in foreseeable future.

  Subsequent to the Balance Sheet date i.e. 31st March 2012, in April 2012, the Income Tax 
Department initiated proceedings against the Company under Section 132 of the Income-
tax Act, 1961.

  As on the date of adoption of accounts by the Board of directors (29th May 2012), the 
Company is yet to receive a demand notice from the Income Tax Department and is also in 
the process of gathering information / documents and tax advice. Due to this, the Company 
is not in a position to reliably estimate the liability (if any) arising out of these proceedings. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2012

The management, on the basis of best estimate, has made a prudential provision of  
`

39. Major Events

 a) Buy-back of Shares

open market transactions for an aggregate amount of ` 405.828, by utilising Securities 
Premium of `

premium for `10.461 being  the nominal value of shares bought back in terms of Section 

the Company has bought back (including above) total 7,313,644 shares for an aggregate 
amount of ` 558.638.

 b) Insurance Claim

  During the year the Group has received insurance claim of `  
` 59.413) for damage occurred for certain project from Insurance Company.

 c) Acquisition of Neela Systems Limited

`98.06 crores and ` 58.77 crores respectively. The Consolidated results for the year ended 
as on 31st March 2012, include, Turnover of ` ` 2.31 crores (that 

` 93.70 
crores and `

` 90.57 crores and Total Liabilities include  
` 

40. Prior year comparatives

of Balance Sheet.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Praj Industries Limited

Pramod Chaudhari Gajanan Nabar

Dattatraya Nimbolkar Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer
Director

and Company Secretary
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Statement Pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, Relating to Subsidiary 

Companies as of 31st March, 2012

(Currency: Indian rupees millions, except share data)

1 NAME OF THE 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Praj Industries 

(Africa) Pty. 

Limited, South 

Africa

Praj 

Americas 

Inc. USA

Praj Far 

East 

Co., Ltd. 

Thailand

BioCnergy 

Europa BV, 

Netherlands

Praj 

Jaragua 

Bioenergia 

S.A. Brazil

Neela 

Systems 

Limited, 

India

Pacecon 

Engineering 

Projects 

Limited, 

India

2 FINANCIAL PERIOD OF 

THE SUBSIDIARY ENDED 

ON

31/03/2012 31/03/2012 31/03/2012 31/03/2012 31/03/2012 31/03/2012 31/03/2012

3 HOLDING COMPANY’S 

INTEREST

100% of  

Equity Capital

100% of 

Equity 

Capital

100% of 

Equity 

Capital

60% of 

Equity 

Capital

54% of 

Equity 

Capital

50.20% 

of Equity 

Capital

99.53% of 

Equity Capital

4 CAPITAL 1.311 9.281 5.007 29.385 135.831 50.000 3.098

5 RESERVES 1.839 (5.776) 5.006 51.304 (134.268) 195.269 0.265

6 TOTAL ASSETS 181.988 4.519 10.425 615.151 1.648 904.798 265.835

7 TOTAL LIABILITIES 181.988 4.519 10.425 615.151 1.648 904.798 265.835

8 INVESTMENTS NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 0.110

9 TURNOVER 40.347 16.980 32.859 589.689 - 308.121 273.528

10 NET AGGREGATE PROFIT /

(LOSS) FOR THE CURRENT 

YEAR - (BEFORE TAXES)

2.404 (6.463) 2.370 7.043 (1.727) 68.113 13.070

11 PROVISION FOR 

TAXATION (INCLUDING 

DEFERRED TAXES)

0.728 - 0.305 1.616 - 22.052 3.843

12 PROFIT AFTER TAX 1.676 (6.463) 2.065 5.427 (1.727) 46.061 9.227

13 PROPOSED DIVIDEND NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

14 NET AGGREGATE 

PROFITS/LOSSES FOR 

THE CURRENT FINANCIAL 

YEAR SINCE BECOMING 

SUBSIDIARY SO FAR 

AS IT CONCERNS THE 

MEMBERS OF THE 

HOLDING COMPNAY 

DEALT WITH OR 

PROVIDED FOR IN 

ACCOUNTS OF THE 

HOLDING COMPANY 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

15 NET AGGREGATE 

PROFITS/LOSSES FOR 

THE CURRENT FINANCIAL 

YEAR SINCE BECOMING 

SUBSIDIARY SO FAR 

AS IT CONCERNS THE 

MEMBERS OF THE 

HOLDING COMPNAY 

NOT DEALT WITH OR 

PROVIDED FOR IN 

ACCOUNTS OF THE 

HOLDING COMPANY 

1.676 (6.463) 2.065 3.256 (0.933) 23.123 9.184
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1 NAME OF THE 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Praj Industries 

(Africa) Pty. 

Limited, South 

Africa

Praj 

Americas 

Inc. USA

Praj Far 

East 

Co., Ltd. 

Thailand

BioCnergy 

Europa BV, 

Netherlands

Praj 

Jaragua 

Bioenergia 

S.A. Brazil

Neela 

Systems 

Limited, 

India

Pacecon 

Engineering 

Projects 

Limited, 

India

16 NET AGGREGATE 

PROFITS/LOSSES FOR 

THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL 

YEAR SINCE BECOMING 

SUBSIDIARY SO FAR 

AS IT CONCERNS THE 

MEMBERS OF THE 

HOLDING COMPNAY 

DEALT WITH OR 

PROVIDED FOR IN 

ACCOUNTS OF THE 

HOLDING COMPANY 

N.A. NIL NIL NIL NIL N.A. NIL

17 NET AGGREGATE 

PROFITS /LOSSES 

FOR THE PREVIOUS 

FINANCIAL YEAR SINCE 

BECOMING SUBSIDIARY 

SO FAR AS IT CONCERNS 

THE MEMBERS OF THE 

HOLDING COMPNAY 

NOT DEALT WITH OR 

PROVIDED FOR IN 

ACCOUNTS OF THE 

HOLDING COMPANY 

NIL 0.153 0.798 7.222 (73.237) NIL (9.150)

18 NET AGGREGATE 

AMOUNTS RECEIVED 

AS DIVIDEND FOR THE 

PREVIOUS FINANCIAL 

YEARS SINCE BECOMING 

SUBSIDIARY DEALT WITH 

IN THE ACCOUNTS OF THE 

HOLDING COMPANY IN 

THE FINANCIAL YEARS

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

19 ORIGINAL CURRENCY ZAR US 

DOLLAR

THAI  

BAHT

EURO BRAZILIAN 

REAL

INR INR

20 EXCHANGE RATE AS ON 

31ST MARCH, 2012 IN INR-

CLOSING RATE

 6.74  50.83  1.68  67.64  28.41 - -

21 EXCHANGE RATE FROM 

1ST APRIL, 2011 TO 31ST 

MARCH, 2012 IN INR-

AVERAGE RATE

 6.46  48.10  1.56  66.18  28.31 - -

Statement Pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, Relating to Subsidiary 

Companies as of 31st March, 2012

(Currency: Indian rupees millions, except share data)

For and on behalf of the Board of Praj Industries Limited

Pramod Chaudhari Gajanan Nabar
Executive Chairman CEO & Managing Director

Dattatraya Nimbolkar Sivaramakrishnan S. Iyer
Place: Pune VP - Finance & Accounts Director
Date: 29th May, 2012 and Company Secretary
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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty-Sixth Annual General Meeting of PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

will be held on Friday, 20th July, 2012 at 10.00 a.m.

“PRAJ HOUSE”, Bavdhan, Pune 411 021 to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare Dividend on Equity Shares.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

an Ordinary Resolution:

By Order of the Board of Directors

 Dattatraya Nimbolkar
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Notes:-

(a) A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the 

Meeting) is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on a Poll instead of himself and 

the Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

behalf at the Meeting.

 Dattatraya Nimbolkar



Praj   Annual Report 2011-12

u

o
o

g

n

n

Sustaining

GrowingResilience
Sustaining, Growing

Sustaining Enduring

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Resilience,
Consolidating

Sustaining
Growing

SustainingResilience
nce

Resilience
Su

Gro
Resilience

Sustaining Enduring, Co

Enduring

Enduring
Consolidating

G i

Resilience
Sustaining

Resilience, Enduring, Consolidating

Consolidating

GrowingGrowing

SustainingResilience
Resilie

Resilien

Resilience
Enduring

Consolidating

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956.

ITEM NO. 5

 

While approving the revised remuneration the Company has complied with the requirements 

under Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956. The remuneration payable to Mr. Pramod 

Chaudhari, Executive Chairman shall be as under:-

SALARY

Salary not exceeding `

PERQUISITES AND ALLOWANCES

they shall be evaluated at actual cost.



PERFORMANCE BONUS

COMMISSION

Minimum Remuneration

 

OTHER BENEFITS

concerned or interested in the said resolution.

 Dattatraya Nimbolkar
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PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

TWENTY-SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING – FRIDAY, 20TH JULY, 2012

ADMISSION SLIP

TWENTY-SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

Friday 20th July, 2012

 

Note: 

PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

PROXY FORM

TWENTY-SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING – FRIDAY, 20TH JULY, 2012

TWENTY-SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Friday 20th July, 2012

 

Note :
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